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PREFACE 

 

Thousands of people visited the uncorrupted bodily remains of St. Francis 

Xavier during this 17th public exposition. This has been the experience in 
the past too. His body, though dried up and strunk, lies in state as a witness 
to the glory of God and to our Christian Faith.  
 
All those who visit his Bodily remains, are eager to know more 
about the person of St. Francis Xavier.   All of them may not be able to 
read the well-written books on him. Hence this summary version of the life 
and labour, devotion and sufferings of St. Francis Xavier gives a glimpse of 
his life, inspiring us to live a holy life and spread the fragrance of God’s love 

manifested in Jesus Christ our Saviour.  
 
This booklet is based on the well-documented book, “St. Francis Xavier and 
His Shrine” written by Fr. P. Rayanna SJ. I am sure those who read this 
booklet, “Glimpses of St. Francis Xavier” will be urged to read Fr. P. 
Rayanna’s book to know more about St. Francis Xavier and the truth and 
validity of Christian Faith.  
 
Our visit to Bom Jesus Basilica, must not be just to satisfy our curiosity but 
to consolidate our Faith and to rejoice in it. And surely we shall experience 
showers of blessings from God, through St. Francis Xavier. 

 
Fr. Varghese Nediakalayil SVD 
(Secretary & Executive Secretary, ACEC-I) 
ACECI National Office, 10, Bhai Vir Singh Marg, New Delhi-110001. 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Glimpses of  St. Francis Xavier 
(The Man, His Mission and The Miracles) 

 

Introduction 

 

Goa, the  small but beautiful  state of India is  a world tourist attraction  not only because of  its 

wide-spread beaches and ever green  landscapes  but also because of the miraculously 

uncorrupted bodily  remains of  St. Francis Xavier. The Goans call him, with loving respect, 

“Goycho Saib” (The Lord of Goa) and “Goyacho Pai” (Father of Goa).  
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Many came to witness the 17th Exposition of his Holy remains (Relics), uncorrupted even to this 

day, 512 years after his death on 3rd December, 1552. No one ever gave any special treatment to 

protect and preserve his body, yet it has not decayed upto this day.  Yes, that’s why people 

consider it a miracle and flock to see the uncorrupted body of St. Francis Xavier and pray for his 

saintly help in their needs. Yet, a curious question arises in any one’s mind: “What’s the secret of 

this unusual phenomenon”? 

 

To answer this question we must ask some more questions: Who was this man? What was his 

mission? Were there any miracles in his lifetime? And who stands behind and beyond Francis 

Xavier? And thus discover the personality, mission, miracles and the person behind him – LORD 

JESUS CHRIST.  

 

I. Francis Xavier : The Man 
 

01. Born in Xavier’s Castle: Francis Xavier was born to Don Juan de Jassu y Atondo and Dona 

Maria de Azpilcueta y Aznarez de Sada as their 5th child in Xavier’s Castle 

on 7th April, 1506 in the kingdom of Navarre, situated between two 

aggressive neighbours – Aragon in Spain on the one side and France on the 

other. He was named Francisco de Jassu y de Xavier at his baptism. While 

his brothers took up arms for name and fame, the young Francis was 

interested to become a man of letters. Xavier family suffered heavily due to 

the conflict between France and Spain as their beloved country Navarre got 

sand-witched between the warring neighbours. Consequently not only it lost 

its fame and properties but even the father of Xavier family, Don Juan, a 

prominent patriot of the kingdom of Navarre   died in despair, Xavier castle 

demolished and his brothers declared rebels. Xavier was then just 18 years of age.  He alone 

stood by his mother sharing in her sorrows.  Yet Dona Maria took care of her youngest son, first 

by getting him enrolled as a cleric of Pamplona and then sending him to St. Barbara in Paris to 

get the best of education of the day.   

 

02. Francis in Paris: But Francis used his freedom from home casually in the company of his 

worldly friends, living a frivolous and expensive life, taking recourse to novel views and 

doctrines prevailing among the youth and endangering his own Catholic Faith. However,  in 

1925  in the  same year  as Francis  arrived  in  the  university  of Paris,  there arrived a shepherd 

youth named Peter Favre . Both of them became good friends as they shared the same room at St. 

Barbara. They took their licentiate together in 1529. Peter’s innocent living saved Francis from 

slipping further into student follies.   

 

03. Francis and Ignatius of Loyola: The invisible hand of God was over Francis.   There 

appeared yet another person, a second room-mate. He was the valiant Spanish warrior wounded 

defending Pamplona against the French troops. His spiritual experiences during the period of his 

convalescence turned him completely to God. This was Ignatius of Loyola. At first Francis even 

avoided his presence rather than appreciating his views. However, as time went on Francis was 

challenged and changed by Ignatius from his worldly ways.  Ignatius countered Xavier’s 

ambitious plans for name and fame with this saying of Christ, “What shall it profit a man if he 
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gains the whole world and loses his own soul?” Francis Xavier was so captivated by this 

question, that he would often repeat it to himself and even write it in his letters to others to lead 

them  to the Lord. Francis was thus overturned and won over to live totally for Christ, by 

Ignatius through the “Spiritual Exercises” which he practiced and taught.  Francis never regretted 

but ever since rejoiced in his conversion to “seek ye first the kingdom of God and everything 

else will be given to you”.  Francis surrendered to Ignatius so completely as to become his life-

long disciple, friend and son.   Favre too was happy to see the conversion of Francis. They now 

were co-disciples of Ignatius. 

 

04. The Companions of Jesus: By the end of 1533 these three in one room attracted to 

themselves four other Paris University students, namely Simon Rodrigues de Azevedo, James 

Laynez, Alphonsus Salmeron and Nicholas Bobadilla. After their studies, they resolved, to go to 

Venice and from there to Jerusalem and spend their lives at the service of souls. Or else to go to 

Rome and present themselves to the Pope, Vicar of Christ, so that he might employ them 

wherever he might consider to be most useful for the glory of God and the benefit of souls.  They 

also resolved to study theology at least for three more years, and as priests to preach and 

administer the sacraments free of charge.  Some of them also desired to preach the Good News 

of Christ to those who have not known Him as yet.   

 

On 15th August 1534, on the feast of the Assumption of the Blessed Virgin Mary, the mother of 

Jesus, they all went to an isolated chapel on the slopes of Montmartre, just outside of the gates of 

Paris. There during the Holy Mass they pronounced their vows of chastity and of a pilgrimage to 

Jerusalem. They called themselves, the Companions of Jesus, later known as the Society of 

Jesus. Thus, inspired by the spirit of Ignatius, along with him and the other companions, 

Francis Xavier decided to live and work for the Glory of God and to do His will rather than 

seeking what is considered glorious in the sight of men.   

 

05. Being Blessed by the Pope: On the second anniversary of their vows another three French 

students joined them – Claude Le Jay, Paschase Broet, (both priests) and Jean Codure. As 

Ignatius had already left for Venice, the nine set out from Paris for Venice and joined Ignatius on 

8th January 1537.  As they had to wait for six months in Venice to sail to Palestine, the non-

priests, Francis being one among them, began to serve in the two hospitals of Venice, without 

caring for any filth, stench or contagion. After 2 months they decided to go to Rome to get the 

necessary permission and blessings of the Pope for their pilgrimage to the Holy Land. So the 

nine plus the three recruits made by Ignatius in Venice set out for Rome with out purse or 

provisions, leaving Ignatius at Venice.  They reached Rome and Pope Paul III invited them on 

April 3, Tuesday in Easter week   to dispute on some theological points. The Pope was greatly 

pleased with their knowledge and humility. He allowed them to go on the pilgrimage with his 

blessings and presented them 60 ducats and others courtiers collecting for them another 200 

more. He also permitted them to be ordained by any bishop but forty miles away from Rome. 

 

06. Ordained a Priest:  With joyful hearts they returned to Venice after 6 months to report to 

Ignatius the glad tidings of their trip to Rome. Soon they went back to their service in the 

hospitals till their ordination to priesthood on 24 June 1537. The new priests were Frs. Ignatius, 

Xavier, Laynes, Bobadilla and Codure. They decided to offer their first Mass only after 

preparations of two months with prayer and penance, in silence and solitude. After two months 
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of this seclusion they came together at Vicenza, where Ignatius was staying with Favre and 

Laynez. Here at Vicenza, Fr. Francis Xavier offered his first Mass on 30th Sept. 1537. Then 

Xavier and Bobadilla worked through autumn and winter of 1537 at Bologna.  Xavier fell ill due 

to his hard work and penance. 

07. In Rome: As decided at Vincenza, Ignatius, Favre and Laynez went to Rome. They found a 

suitable place in Rome near the Church of S. Trinita Dei Monti. By Easter 1538 all others also 

reached, but Xavier in an exhausted state. So Xavier became an assistant to Favre at St. Louis, 

the church of the French colony in Rome.  

 

Then the Pope suggested to them to work for the good of the Church in Italy instead of going to 

Jerusalem. Since that vow of pilgrimage to Palestine could not be fulfilled, they all wished to 

place themselves at the disposal of the Pope by the terms of their vow which they had not 

revealed to him yet. Now they did so at a special audience, offering themselves to go under 

obedience anywhere the Pope Paul III and his successors might  w ish to send them in the service 

of the Church and souls, even to the furtherest Indies.   

 

They also began to think of founding a new Religious Order. So they decided to remain in prayer 

and penance for 15 days, each one by himself. After that a ceremony similar to that at 

Montmartre four years ago took place. Fr. Favre before giving communion during the Mass put 

the question to each one of them whether he would like to form a Religious Order and whether 

he would join it. They all answered “yes” to both these questions and received Communion. 

Then they started  long discussions about the aim and nature of their Institute; drew up a short 

statement about it in five chapters, which is known as the “Formula Instituti” of the Society of 

Jesus. All of them signed it and presented it to the Pope. Pope Paul III approved it orally on 3 

September 1539, “adding that the Spirit of God was blowing there”. However, the Society’s 

official approval took time due to some others objecting to another New Order.  At this time 

Xavier was serving as secretary to Fr. Ignatius.  
 

II.  Fr. Francis Xavier: The Missionary 
 

01. Missionary to India:  Portugal and Spain made sea voyages to the East to promote their 

trade and to expand their empire. Vasco da Gama managed to reach Calicut on 

22 May 1498. They were also equally interested to share their faith. Hence 

they took missionaries along when they set sail to the East. But the demand for 

priests was much more than Portugal alone could supply. The king of Portugal, 

therefore, instructed his ambassador at Rome to request the Pope to send six 

priests from the Society of Jesus to the East. Fr. Ignatius was informed about 

the matter and he readily agreed to the request but could spare only two priests 

for the moment, Simon Rodrigues and Bobadilla. A young secular priest, Paul of Camerion also 

volunteered to join them.  On 14th March 1540, Ignatius, however, was forced to ask his 

secretary, Fr. Francis to replace Bobadilla who fell ill, saying “This is your enterprise.”  

 

Xavier responded enthusiastically, “Fine, here I am, send me where you will!” Immediately he 

got ready for his missionary trip. He also signed three documents in connection with the religious 

order they were in the process of founding. 
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02. Off to Lisbon:  Xavier began his missionary journey along with the retinue of Dom Pedro 

Mascarenhas, the ambassador of Portugal. The ambassador seems to have taken the round about 

way of 2,000 miles to Lisbon in order to visit the famous Shrine of Our Lady of Loreto.   

 

The ambassador was very much impressed by the way Xavier conducted himself. In one of his 

letters to the King of Portugal he called Xavier a saintly man and praised his earnestness in 

spiritual matters. Xavier was eager to help people to repentance in the retinue.  

 

Here is an incident which revealed the spirit of Francis Xavier. The secretary of the ambassador 

had quarreled with an innkeeper and used unchristian language in the hearing of Fr. Francis, who 

found fault with him. But the angry man did not take this well and shortly after rode on ahead.  

After a couple of hours Xavier caught up with him and made him repent of his action.  

 

They were then crossing the Mount Cenis pass. At a dangerous spot in the road the secretary’s 

horse stumbled over a stone and fell down the steep slop. Both horse and rider remained stuck 

fast in a snow-bank.  When Xavier came to the spot where the horse had tripped, he looked down 

and saw the secretary poised helplessly over the edge of the gorge. He climbed down carefully 

and freed the horse and rider at the risk of his own life. Since then the secretary remained deeply 

grateful to the one who had saved his life.  

 

This was Rodrigo Anes Lucas, who, later as   secretary of India, gave out the following details 

about Xavier’s way of life on their journey: 

 

“He was always at his prayer. He was very pleasant and gentle in his intercourse with others, and 

had a way of being the first to saddle and feed the horses in the cavalcade. His conversation was 

of God and moved the hearts of those who heard him to sorrow for their sins and amendment of 

their lives. Where ever he passed, he left the remembrance of his sanctity, above all of his 

charity, as I myself had good reason to know”.  

 

03. In Lisbon:  Leisurely moving on, the ambassador and his suite slowly went down to Lisbon 

in the first week of June 1540. Rodrigues and Paul of Camerino had already arrived there two 

months earlier. But Rodrigues was suffering from quartan ague. Xavier went to see him as soon 

as he reached Lisbon. He reported the result of his visit thus: 

 

“He was so delighted to see me and I to see him that our united joy expelled the fever and he 

now had no attack for a month! He is very well and doing great work”.  

 

Three or four days after their arrival in the city, they had an audience with the King and the 

queen. King John III was very much interested and pleased with this new group of priests. 

Already by the end of a month’s stay and apostolate, the King and his people began to see that 

they would lose if this zealous band of priests were to go to India. Hence they were of the 

opinion that they stay on there rather than going to the Indian missions. Consequently, Fr. 

Rodrigues was detained in Portugal and Frs. Xavier and Paul were to sail to India. 
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 What pleasantly surprised the court and the people was the selflessness and self-sacrificing lives 

of these new priests in their midst. They were very much impressed by their spiritual ministry, 

their mortified lives and above all the absence of greed. 

 

04. Voyage to the East: The India fleet that year was carrying the governor designate – Dom 

Martin Affonso de Souza.  In March 1541, the king received Fr. Xavier and his party in a final 

audience and gave him four Briefs from Pope making Frs.  Xavier and Rodrigues “apostolicae 

sedis nuntii”, apostolic missionaries with faculties to teach, preach and absolve sins and 

censures.  

 

 A fleet of five ships set sail from Lisbon on 7 April 1541. Xavier was, then, thirty-five years old 

that day.  His apostolic party on Santiago, the flag-ship of the Governor consisted of the Italian 

secular priest Paul of Camerino, a boy named Diogo Fernandes, a relative of Rodriguez, and 

Francisco Mansillhas. The ship was carrying 700 persons. The sea-voyage, in those days, was so 

full of hardships, that Fr. Xavier wrote to Fr. Ignatius that he would not undertake it “except for 

God’s sake”. Yes, for the sake of God and the salvation of souls he would face worse voyages in 

the coming years of his life.  

 

In spite of himself getting sick on board, Fr. Xavier began to nurse and console the sick, to assist 

the dying day and night, to instruct and settle quarrels. They called him in admiration “padre 

santo”, the holy priest. The Indian fleet reached Mozambique and was marooned there for a year. 

The acting Governor  in Goa  became  concerned  at the  delay for the fleet and  sent  a  ship  by 

name  Coulam  to Mozambique  to get  news  of  it. The ship brought disturbing news about the 

affairs in Goa to the new governor. So he boarded this ship on its return voyage taking Xavier 

with him but leaving the others of his party behind.  The governor’s ship carrying Fr. Francis 

Xavier reached Goa on 6 March 1542.  

 

05 On Goan Soil: The Portuguese came out to India to break the monopoly of Arab trade in 

spices. Goa was the most important centre of trade with Arabia in spices and horses. The Island 

of Goa belonged to the Hindu empire of Vijayanagar till Muhumud Gawan, a general of the 

Sultan of Bijapur, captured it on 11 February 1417.  Goa, thus, became the Muslim capital of the 

island and it began to oppress the Hindus. 

 

The oppressed Hindus invited the Portuguese to help them to chase out the Muslims. Thus 

Affonso de Albuquerque, the Portuguese Captain, along with his Hindu allies captured the town 

of Goa on 25 November 1510, the feast of St. Catherine of Alexandria, who is since then 

Patroness of the Cathedral Church and of the city of Goa. It is about this new city that Fr. Francis 

Xavier wrote to Rome: “More than four months have passed since we reached Goa here in India, 

a completely Christian city that is something to behold”. 

 

Immediately after reaching Goa Fr. Francis Xavier went to meet the Bishop, Fray Jean de 

Albuquerque, a Franciscan and a Spaniard like himself. The Bishop warmly welcomed him. 

Then Fr. Xavier went to live in the royal hospital to nurse the sick and help the dying. The town 

was cosmopolitan. Many of them were Christians, but ill-instructed in their faith and shallow in 

the practice of it. He therefore devised a method of his own to attract and instruct them. 
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He went up and down the streets and squares with a bell in his hand, crying out to the children 

and others to come for instruction. The novelty of the proceedings never seen before in Goa 

brought a large crowd around him. He led them to a church for instruction. He sang the lessons 

which he had rhymed and then made the children sing them so that they might become better 

fixed in their memories. Afterwards, he explained each point in the simplest way, using only 

such words as his young audience could understand. “By this method, which has since been 

adopted everywhere in the Indies, he so deeply ingrained the truths and precepts of the faith in 

the hearts of the people that men and women, children and old folk, took to singing the Ten 

Commandments while they walked on the streets, as did the fisherman in his boat and the 

labourers in the fields, for their own entertainment and recreation.” He also visited leper asylums 

and prisons. 

 

But after four months of such labours Governor Martin Affonso de Souza told him to proceed to 

the Fishery Coast.  So towards the end of September 1542 he left for the South, the field of his 

real apostolic labours. 

 

O6. Fisher of Men:  Fr. Francis Xavier reached the fishery coast, Cape Comurin, to preach the 

Gospel and make new Christians. He was given two local helpers, Manuel and Gaspar, deacons 

who got ordained in 1544.  In a letter on his missionary life and its hardships to his brethren in 

Rome he wrote, “I believe that those who truly love the cross of Christ, our Lord find rest when 

they encounter these trials and die when they flee from them. How peaceful it is to live by 

seeking ‘not what is our own but what is of Jesus Christ”. 

 

The Arabs and their descendants in India had the monopoly of sea-trade in pearls, spices and 

horses from Calicut to Rameshwaram. Portuguese aimed to eliminate Muslim trade and 

influence in the Indian Ocean. The conversion of the paravas to Christianity would bring the 

Portuguese to the Fishery Cost in their defense. 

 

 As a result of a conflict between the Paravas and the Arabs, the Portuguese were contacted by 

Paravas for help at Cochin. Consequently Miguel Vaz, the Vicar General, baptized 85 of these 

Parva village head-men. The Portuguese ships took them back home along with the Vicar-

General, Pedro Gonsalves, the vicar of Cochin, three other priests and Juan da Cruz, the trader 

from Calicut. These priests then baptized 20,000 men, women and children in two villages. This 

mass conversion of the Paravas had two very important results; one political, namely the 

elimination of the Muslim power from the Gulf of Mannar once for all; the other, ecclesiastical, 

the call of the Jesuits to India, Fr. Francis Xavier being at their head. 

          

07. The Man with a Mission: Fr. Francis and the three Indian clerics landed in October 1542, 

probably at Manapad. Then, he began the real missionary labours of his life.  So far he had been 

following the pattern of life of charity and zeal as practiced by his companions everywhere under 

the guidance of St. Ignatius. Now he began to break new grounds. Within the next two years he 

would teach, preach, sweat, labour unceasingly at every problem that confronts a missionary in 

any new field.  

 

As soon as he disembarked on the coast he proceeded to various villages and baptized all the 

children of the Christians who had not been baptized. He taught the children prayers, like the 
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sign of the Cross, our Father and the Hail Mary. The people crowded to him inviting him to visit 

their homes to pray over the sick. He wrote, “So numerous were the petitioners that merely to 

read an excerpt from the Gospel over their stricken  relatives, would have taken all my time, and 

besides, I had the children to teach, baptisms to administer, prayers done into Tamil to 

memorize, and the dead to bury. It was an endless round, but I had not the heart to deny any of 

those sacred requests, lest my people’s faith should suffer injury. As it was impossible for me to 

meet personally the ever growing volume of calls or to counter the little jalousies that arouse 

among the good people in their competition to have me in their homes, I resorted to the 

following expedient.  

 

‘I told the children who had memorized the Christian  doctrine to betake  themselves to the 

homes of the sick, there to collect as many of the family and neighbours as possible, and to say 

the Creed  several times, assuring  the sick  persons that if they believed they would be 

cured…..’ ‘In this way I managed to satisfy all the callers, and at the same time secured that the 

Creed, the Commandments, and  the prayers were  taught in the people’s homes and abroad in 

the streets. More over owing to the faith of their families and friends, God has shown great 

mercy to the sick, healing them in both body and soul…’ Besides teaching them prayers, Fr. 

Xavier wanted in each village a school set up for the children with a master to teach them. 

 

From Manapad Fr. Francis went up the coast rapidly to Tuticorin. Here he developed a new plan 

of instructing the Christians. He looked for people who knew Portuguese and their own 

language, Tamil. Then he got the prayers translated into Tamil, beginning with the manner of 

making the sign of the Cross as a profession of  Faith that there exists one only God in three 

Divine Persons. After that, the Creed, the Commandments, the Our Father and the Hail Mary, the 

Hail Holy Queen and the I Confess were translated into Tamil. He learned the translated 

formulae by heart, and then, taking a bell went ringing it right through the town to collect as 

many children and adults as he could. He taught them regularly every day so that they had 

learned the prayers by the end of the month. He then arranged the children to teach their fathers, 

mothers, sisters, brothers and neighbours the lessons they had acquired at his school. 

 

 On Sundays, he assembled all the people, and got them to repeat the prayers in their language. 

They were glad  in doing so and came to the meeting enthusiastically. 

 

That’s how he solved the language problem himself. Later he directed his assistants stationed on 

the coast to learn Tamil themselves. Fr. Xavier never taught catechism to impart just knowledge; 

rather he made it also a prayer.  

 

Fr. Francis Xavier spent four months in Tuticorin. Then he moved down the coast to the other 

villages. When he reached the southern-most end, he began to retrace his steps. He thus spent 

more than a year all alone, in instructing the Paravas in the rudiments of the Faith. When leaving 

the village he instructed the head-man to gather the people on Sundays for prayer and instruction 

from the sheets of paper he left with them. Apparently this system did not work to his 

satisfaction. So in the following year we see him employ paid catechists. Nor did social evils 

escape his attention. He thundered against the evil of drinking and threatened to penalize those 

who persisted in this habit.  
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He then, went to Goa back to know about the arrival of his companions from Mozambique 

whom the Governor had already assigned to the College of St. Paul. He also received letters from 

Rome from which he came to know that the Society of Jesus was confirmed on 27th September 

1540 by the Pope and Fr. Ignatius was elected General of the Order on 8 April 1541 and on 22nd 

April five Parisian Masters made their solemn vows as Jesuits in the Church of St. Paul outside 

the Walls, Rome.  Then he himself made the solemn religious vows in the hands of his friend, 

the Bishop of Goa, and carried a copy of it ever after in a copper reliquary about his neck.  

 

Taking Mansillhas and two Indian diocesan priests, Fr. Xavier began his return journey in 

February 1544  to  the southern fishery coasts.  This year was a time of soul-stirring events for 

the Church in those parts. These events showed up what was in Fr. Xavier as a zealous 

missionary, as a wakeful pastor of souls and as an understanding director of his assistants.  

 

When the Muslim troops of Vijayanagar (Vadugers) invaded Cape Comorin territory, the 

defenseless villagers fled in terror in their boats to the outlying islands, where they found no food 

to eat or water to drink. Fr. Xavier was everywhere, in person and through his letters and 

messages to his assistants. They had mobilized all the boats they could from the other villages, 

gather provisions and water and rush to the aid of the refugees.  

 

When at last peace came to the South, Tuticorin in the North was attacked in its turn. Fr. Xavier 

then turned his attention that side with as much care and solicitude. This indefatigable pastor 

would bear any trouble and suffering to protect his Christians; he would brave even chieftains, 

alone and unarmed. By his superhuman exertion, care and foresight he managed to save his flock 

from the worst ravages of the marauding soldiers. Three castes of fisher folk live about Cape 

Comerin – the Paravas in the middle on the Fishery Coast, the Careas in the north on both sides 

of the Gulf of Mannar and the Mukkuvas to the west on the Arabian Coast. 

 

The incessant labours, travels and wonders worked by Fr. Xavier among the Paravas for the past 

two years had the inevitable effect of rousing these two castes. They too wanted to become 

Christians like the Paravas. They invited Fr. Xavier to go and baptize them.    

 

08. Mukuvas Want the Missionary:  In Travancore which Fr. Francis Xavier cut across, God 

moved many persons to become Christians. He says, “It was so that in a single month I baptized 

more than ten thousand  men, women and children.” His method was the same as we have 

already seen – simple, practical,  people-oriented  participatory mission of preaching and 

teaching.  He wrote,  “My method, on  arriving  in a heathen village, was to assemble the men 

and  the boys apart, and  to begin  by teaching them  to make the Sign of the Cross three times as 

a confession of faith in Father, Son and Holy Spirit, Three Persons in One only God. I then 

recited in a loud voice the General Confession, the Creed, the Commandments, the Ave Maria 

(Hail Mary), and Salve Regina (Hail Holy Queen). Two years ago, I copied out those prayers and 

formulae in the Tamil language which is spoken here and know them by heart. I put on a surplice 

for the occasion. All, little and big, then repeated the prayers after me, and that done I gave them 

an instruction on the article of Faith and the Commandments, in Tamil.  Next I required them 

one and all to ask pardon from God for the sins of their past lives, and that publicly and loudly, 

in the presence of the heathens who did not desire to become Christians. This was done for the 

confusion of bad men and the consolation of the good.  The heathens were astonished at hearing 
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the law of God and confounded at their ignorance of God. They showed great satisfaction on 

hearing our law and hold me in esteem, though they did not believe in the truth they came to 

know. At the end of my sermon, I asked all, young and old, whether they really believed in every 

article of our Faith and they all replied “Yes”. Thus in loud voice I recited each article and asked 

each one individually whether he believed; crossing their hands on their breasts they replied 

“yes”. And  then I baptized them, giving to each his  (Portuguese) name in writing (in Tamil)  I 

went thus from village to village making Christians, and in each place I left a written copy of the 

doctrine and prayers in their language, with instructions that they were to be taught daily, each  

morning and evening. My joy in doing all this was greater than I could ever tell you by letter or 

even explain to you, were we face to face.” 

 

He worked for a month or so till 15 December, 1544, moving south from Puvar. Before he could 

reach Manakkudy, the last village of the Mukkuvars, he heard of the Mannar martyrdoms.    
 

09. The Martyrs of His Missions::  

 

i. The Martyrs of Mannar:   Fr. Xavier writes in the following manner: “The natives sent me 

word that they wished to become Christians, and they asked me to come to baptize them. I could 

not go, however, since I was busy with other matters that greatly concerned the service of our 

Lord, I asked a cleric to go and baptize them. But after he had gone there and baptized them, the 

king of the land (Chekarasa Sekaran, king of Jaffna) acted with great cruelty towards them and 

slew many of them because they had become Christians.”  

 

Martyrdom itself that is, giving witness to Jesus unto blood is a cause of great joy to the 

Christian. But if every raja is left free to massacre the Christians, how was he going to preach 

baptism along with martyrdom? So he rushed to Goa to beg the Governor to bring the murderous 

raja to book. The Governor readily agreed and even charged the Captain in the south to prepare a 

punitive expedition. But Xavier also prayed for the repentance of the king.  

 

ii. A Martyred Prince of Ceylon:  In Kotte in Ceylon, the crown prince of that kingdom (Jugo by 

name) wanted to become a Christian. On coming to know of this the king ordered him to be 

killed.  Fr. Francis Xavier wrote, “Those who were present at this execution say that they saw in 

the air a cross of fire and that the earth where he was killed opened out in the form of a cross and 

that many infidels who witnessed these signs were move to become Christians. A brother of the 

prince, on witnessing those signs, asked to be baptized and the priests there did indeed baptize 

him. I spoke with this prince who is on his way to the Governor to seek help in order to protect 

himself against the king who had killed his brother.  I think that before long that kingdom will be 

converted to our faith, for the people are much impressed by those signs at the prince’s death, 

and the heir to throne is a Christian”.  

 

10. Two Kings of Macassar Baptized: In Macassar two great kings of Supa and Siao, with 

many other people became Christians eight months ago. These kings sent envoys to the fortress 

of  the King of Portugal  to ask for religious persons who might teach and instruct them in the 

law of God. Xavier wrote, “from these things which I am writing to you, you can perceive how 

well prepared this land is to bring forth much fruit.” 
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11. The Red-Letter Year: Thus, 1544 was the red-letter year in the missionary career of 

St. Francis Xavier. It was the year that Xavier went back from Goa to the fishery Coast with 

Mansillhas, the year in which, besides catechizing with them, he defended with superhuman 

exertion the Paravas from the invading Badagas (the Muslims) and the oppression of the captain 

at Tuticorin; the year  in which he got baptized the Careas, 600 of whom sealed their new faith 

with their blood  in Mannar; and finally the year  in which he himself baptized 10,000 Mukkuv 

as with his own hand in 13 villages down till Manakkudi  on the Travancore  coast by the middle 

of December. 

 

It was also the year in which the two sons of Bhuvaneka Bahu of Kotte in Ceylon were baptized, 

the elder of whom became a martyr at the hands of his father. 1544 was also the year when a 

Portuguese royal employee baptized the kings of Supa and Siao with many of their subjects in 

Macassar or the Celebes and these kings asked for priests to instruct them further in the Faith. 

 

12. Francis Xavier at Mylapore:  Francis carried the letters of the Governor to captains of the 

southern parts concerning the punitive expedition against 

Jaffna; he followed the fleet to Quilon, Colombo and 

Nagpatam. However, he came to know that expedition 

against the king of Jaffna was not then feasible.  

 

From Nagapatam Fr. Francis Xavier came to Mylapore 

and stayed there over 4 months. During these months Fr. 

Xavier carried on his usual apostolic labours among the 

good people of Mylapore to their great spiritual benefit.  

The Vicar of the San. Thome Church gave him a small piece of bone of St. Thomas, the Apostle, 

which Fr. Xavier ever after carried in a copper reliquary about his neck till his death.    

 

Then Fr. Francis Xavier was in two minds now, about his next move. He had heard the need of 

priests to instruct the newly baptized in the Moluccas. He also wanted to pursue the matter 

concerning the punitive expedition to Jaffna. On 8 May 1545, just a month later, he reported 

joyfully to Borba and Paulo at Goa his decision to go the Moluccas. 

 

13. In the Moluccas: After a month of voyage from Mylapore Fr. Xavier reached Malacca at the 

end of September 1545.  Amidst the usual rounds of teaching, preaching and nursing, he found 

time to translate the prayers into Malay, a common enough language in Moluccas. Then he sailed 

for Amboina, Ternate and Morotai. Everywhere he followed the method he had devised so 

successfully on the fishery coast. Here too success crowned his efforts. He writes, “Thanks be to 

God it has become the custom  in Ternate for  the boys in the streets and the girls and women in 

their homes, day and night, for the toilers in the plantation and the fishermen at sea,  to sing,  

instead  of vain songs, holy chants such as the Creed, Pater Noster (Our Father) and Ave Maria 

(Hail Mary), the Commandments, the Works of Mercy, the General Confession, and many other 

prayers, all in a language understood by all, whether recent converts  to the Faith or people still 

pagans…” 

 

He sailed across the perilous seas in frail boats, yet he kept up his missionary journeys.  “One 

day he was sailing from Amboina and ran into a storm. To calm the waves he took off his 
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crucifix from his neck and was dipping it into the agitated sea when it slipped from his fingers 

and sank. He felt sad at its loss. When walking on the beach of Ceram the following day, he and 

his companion saw to their astonishment a crab crawling towards them, holding the crucifix 

aloft!  Xavier knelt down and took the crucifix from the crab and remained thus for some time in 

absorbed and   grateful prayer”.  

At Malacca there occurred one of the many instances of his clairvoyance or second sight as in 

the case of many saints. The Portuguese ships went in pursuit of pirates who had raided the 

harbour of Malacca one night, in August 1547. There was panic in the town as no news came of 

the sea for forty days. On December 4 after the usual sermon exhorting people to trust in God, 

then he suddenly stopped, as if caught up in a vision. When he spoke again, he said:  

 

“There are women and others here who practice divining and consult fortune-tellers, only to hear 

from them that out fleet has been destroyed and that their husbands are dead. Rather ought they 

to lift up their hearts to God in thankfulness and to say a Pater Noster (Our Father) and Ave 

Maria (Hail Mary) in gratitude, for I tell you that today, this very day, our fleet has won a great 

victory and scattered the enemy.” 

 

A few days later, a messenger arrived with some news. Crowds surrounded him, inquiring as to 

the date and day of the victory. Everything turned out to be as Fr. Xavier had announced. 

 

14. Opening the Door to Japan: It was again at Malacca that Francis made the first contact with 

Japan in 1547. While in the city of Malacca some Portuguese merchants told him about the 

prospects of bring more people to Christian faith in Japan than in India. Later he met Japanese 

named Anjiro who sought him for making a confession to him.  During a discussion with Anjiro, 

he told him that the Japanese would accept the Christian faith provided he answered their 

questions satisfactorily and if they found him living according to what he taught. So Francis had 

a strong feeling that in 2 years time he himself or some other from his Society would  go to 

Japan. 

 

15.  Missionary – Meet at Nanapad:  From Moluccas Xavier landed at Cochin on 12 January 

1548. He called the missionaries – seven Jesuits and their auxiliaries -for a meeting and 

consultation at Manipad for a fortnight.  

 

At the end a kind of Missionary Directory was issued based on his own pastoral ideas and 

practices, in some 22 short paragraphs, regarding their relations with each other and their flock, 

the sick, the new-born babies and children, associating these in all their ministries, their 

instruction in faith and conduct, the amicable relations with the civil authorities, all inspired by 

patience and charity. He concluded by saying “try with all your might, Fathers, to win the love of 

your people wherever you are and whatever you do for them, with words of love. For you will 

thus do much good to souls.” This instruction is later known as the ABC of the Jesuit missionary.  

 

16. Voyage to Kagoshima: By this time Xavier had made up his mind to go to Japan himself. 

Along with Anjiro he chose seven men in his apostolic team. They set sail from Goa on 15 April 

1549, and reached Malacca on May 31. They reached Kagoshima, on 15 August 1549, the feast 

of Our Lady’s Assumption, a memorable day indeed in the Christian history of Japan. Fr. Francis 
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Xavier was impressed by the Japanese People interest in listening to discourse about God and 

things divine.  

 

The missionaries stayed a little more than a year at Kagoshima. With the help of Angiro they had 

short statements of the Christian faith turned into Japanese. With the notebook in hand Xavier sat 

at entrances of the monasteries and read it from Latin script to the passers-by. Thus he made in 

all about a hundred converts. Later Fr. Xavier shifted his headquarters to Hirado in the 

neighbouring island in September or October 1550, in order to avoid opposition faced at 

Kogoshima.  

 

17. Journey to Kyoto: In order to avoid opposition Xavier intended to obtain permission from 

the Emperor for himself to preach and for his subjects to embrace Christianity. They set out in 

the winter on a journey of 500 miles. Among the many difficult journeys which Fr. Xavier 

undertook this was the most agonizing one because of the unfriendly climate and people? At the 

end of the journey, after waiting at the palace gate for 11 days, he returned to Hirado, as there 

was no one ready to introduce them to the emperor. 

 

Fr. Xavier now decided to approach the local military Lord at Yamaguchi as the ambassador of 

the Pope and the King of Portugal. “He entered Yamaguchi in state, in ambassadorial pomp, 

carrying with him rich presents which were originally meant for the emperor.” He was well 

received by the military Lord who gave them permission to preach the Law of God in his 

territories and allow those of his subjects who so wishes to embrace it. He also made public 

announcements in this regard. He also made over to them an unoccupied Buddhist monastery. 

There Fr. Francis Xavier and his team held discourse to a larger crowd of visitors. Even Buddhist 

priests, nuns and noble men came to hear them. It was those who raised more objections who got 

converted. A large number of the new Christians were of the Samurai class. After their baptism 

they became his most devoted friends. This strenuous apostolate for over four months brought 

forth the conversion of 500 men.  

 

18. Daring to Reach China: At that moment Fr. Francis Xavier came to know that a Portuguese 

ship had arrived at the port of Okinohama. In the middle of September 1551, he set out for 

Okinohama with three Chinese Christians. On 17 December 1551, the ship touched at Sancian 

Island opposite Canton. Here Francis Xavier met Diogo Pereira, the captain of Santa Cruz, an old 

friend. He was planning to go to China as the ambassador to the Emperor of China. He proposed 

to Fr. Xavier that he would take him along to China, though China was closed to foreigners and 

foreign trade. Francis set his heart on this project. 

 

With this project in mind, Fr. Xavier came to Cochin on 24 January 1552. In one of the letters 

from Rome made him on 10 October 1549 the Provincial of all the Jesuits east of the Cape of 

Good Hope. Accordingly he visited the Jesuit houses and personnel and settled their difficulties. 

On 8th April 1552 he wrote to the King of Portugal his determination to go to China for the 

extension our holy Faith. 

 

19. The Last Journey: In the middle of April 1522, Fr. Francis Xavier left Goa for the last time. 

He took along with him six companions. They were to travel in the retinue of Diogo Pereira as 

Portuguese ambassador! After weathering a heavy storm, the party reached Malacca safely. 
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When the captain of Malacca came to know that Diogo Pereira, a merchant, and not he, the 

youngest son of the Great Vasco, Dom Alvaro de Athaide da Gama, was chosen as the 

ambassador to the Emperor of China he was offended about it. He would not allow either the 

ship or its owner to sail. All hopes of Francis entering China in his suite had vanished.  He tried 

to persuade merchants who came there from Canton to take him to Canton. But they all begged 

to be excused; saying their lives and fortunes would be put in jeopardy if the governor of Canton 

discovered his presence. Fr. Francis waited day after days and weeks till he fell ill.  

 

20. The Lonely Death: On November 21 Fr. Francis Xavier fell sick with fever.  There 

remained Anthony and Christopher to nurse him on the island in a hut built for him by the 

sailors. As usual he was bled several times. This is the account Anthony gave of the last days of 

St. Francis Xavier:  

 

“On Monday (28 November, 1552) he lost the power of speech altogether and continued silent 

for three days, until midday on Thursday. During that time he recognized nobody and ate 

nothing. At noon on Thursday he regained his senses, but spoke only to call up the Blessed 

Trinity, Father, Son and Holy Spirit, always one of his tenderest devotions. I heard him again 

repeat ‘Jesus, Son of God, have mercy on me!’ And he exclaimed again and again: ‘O Virgin 

Mother of God, remember me!’ He continues to have these and similar words on his lips until the 

night of Friday passed on towards  the dawn of Saturday, when I could see that he was dying and 

put a lighted candle in his hand. Then, with the name of Jesus on his lips, he rendered his soul to 

his Creator and Lord with great repose and quietude.” 

 

Thus died Fr. Francis Xavier in the night between Friday and Saturday, 2 or 3 December 1552, 

aged forty-six years, , of which he had spent 10 years and 6 months  in Asia. He died a lonely 

death, away from all those who were his own and with out any religious rites.  

 

Fr. Rayanna S.J. the author of book, “St. Francis Xavier and His Shrine” concludes on the life of 

Fr. Francis Xavier, “As a true servant of God and men, from Europe to the confines of Asia he 

had - like St. Paul – ‘gladly spent what he had and been expended’ in the spiritual and eternal 

interests of men, untiringly announcing to them the only Saviour of all and Source of life 

Immortal – JESUS CHRIST!”   
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III. Miraculously Uncorrupted Body 
 

 

 

The reader must have noticed already, while reading through this short life-sketch of St. Francis 

Xavier, that there have been several miraculous incidents along his journey to his mission land 

and during his missionary journeys. All along he has also been recognized as a gentle, caring, 

zelous and holy priest. And his ultimate aim was to share the salvation which he gained at his 

conversion with his fellow human beings as a loving offering from one who tasted the love of 

God. As his body and soul were filled with the Holy Spirit of God, after his death, even his body 

received incorruptibility manifesting grace and power of God.    

 

01. The incorrupt Body:  On the day following his death, the body of Francis was given a lowly 

burial, the burial of the poor on the beach of Sancian. Only four persons were present at the 

grave side: Antonio the Chinaman, two slaves to dig the grave, and a Portuguese, Francisco 

Sanches. They packed the coffin with lime above and below the body as it would consume the 

flesh and leave only the bare bones, in case any one some time later would wish to take them to 

India. Then they put some stones around the grave as markers. As at death, so at the burial there 

took place no wonders, signs or miracles! 

 

The Santa Cruz weighed anchor on 17 February 1553. On Antonio’s request the captain sent a 

man on shore to open the grave and to bring the bones if ready for transportation. The man found 

the body without any sign of decay. With no hesitation, he cut a piece of flesh from below the 

left knee – and brought it to the captain to examine. The captain ordered the coffin to be brought 

on board the ship, filled as it was with lime, and to store it up securely. He thought that the lime 

would do its work of decomposing the flesh quicker on the open sea during the voyage to 

Malacca. 

  

“Thus began the odyssey of Fr. Francis Xavier dead. In life Fr. Xavier gave no rest to his body 

through his fasts and abstinences, his penances and vigils, his journeys on foot or in 

uncomfortable boats, with his incessant labours in teaching, preaching and serving the sick. In 
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death too, that body seem to be fated to find no rest in any grave. In life his troubles, sufferings 

and toils lasted only a dozen years, but after death its vicissitudes seem to have no end through 

the centuries” says Fr.  Rayanna.  

 

The Santa Cruz with the cargo Fr. Xavier’s body reached Malacca on 22 March 1553. The owner 

of Santa Cruz and a great friend of Francis -Diogo Pereira – waited for it on the quay with large 

crowds of people. They bore the bier to the little church of Our Lady of the Mount, where he had 

preached and instructed people. After the recitation of the prayers and Holy Mass for the dead, 

the body was taken out of the lime filled coffin.  

 

“A grave had been hollowed out of the rock near the high alter. There they laid the body, as of 

one who had died but yesterday, without showing the least sign of surprise at the strange 

phenomenon of this incorrupt body. According to the custom of the place no coffin was used, nor 

was the body wrapped in a clean linen cloth, but only a handkerchief thrown over the face. As 

the grave was found to be short, they pressed the head over the breast, thus breaking the neck. 

This position of the head has remained ever since. They then filled the grave with earth, which 

was hard. And so they thumped it down with heavy weights, thus inflicting further injuries to the 

body.”  

 

It thus laid bear under the earth again for nearly five months till 15 August 1553. About this time 

Juan de Beira, the successor of Francis in the Molucca mission, wanted to see the remains of his 

former superior and model. So at night he and Diogo Pereira had the grave opened and the body 

taken out.  To their great surprise the body was still fresh, showing no sign of corruption. Due to 

the rough burial the body received several cuts and wounds. “The nose was crushed, there were 

bruises on the face and a sharp stone had made a wound on the left side.” 

     

Now they realized   that such a live-like body should not be buried again. So they filled up the 

grave quickly, removing all traces of the exhumation of the body. But the body itself they 

secretly carried by night to Pereira’s home, clothed it in the rich linen which Pereira and Xavier 

had prepared as presents to the Emperor of China, and laid it in a new coffin. It thus lay in secret 

there till 11 December 1553, when it was placed on board an old ship bound for Goa. When the 

crew and passengers heard of this, they were very glad and arranged a room for it, burning 

constantly lights and incense before it.  

 

On 16 March 1554, Friday before Palm Sunday, the holy body reached Goa safe. “The whole 

town moved and flocked to the quays. The authorities, both civil and ecclesiastical, the Viceroy 

with his retinue, the chapter of canons and confraternities, the people, rich and poor, men, 

women and children, came out in their festive dresses. The Viceroy ordered all the bells of all the 

churches to ring and all the guns of the forts to boom”. The Jesuits prevail upon The Viceroy to 

allow the usual funeral services to be conducted. Crowds pressed upon the bier and filled the 

street. It was a job to carry the coffin to St. Paul’s College. For three days there was an endless 

procession of people to pass by the bier, kissing the feet, touching them with their rosaries, 

crucifixes, medals, handkerchiefs and other small objects. At dead of night on the last day, the 

body was placed in a new coffin and enclosed in a tomb near alter.  
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But the learned and  the sophisticated among the clergy and laity would not accept such a simple 

explanation. They all were looking for some natural reason like embalming the body. Because of 

these rumors and doubts, the Viceroy Dom Affonso de Noronha ordered a medical examination 

of the body on the next day of its arrival by his personal physician, Dr. Cosmas Saraiva and the 

Vicar General Dr. Ambrosio Ribeiro. Both of them certified that all parts of the flesh was entire, 

covered with its natural skin and humidity without any corruption. That there was no embalming 

of any kind nor had any artificial preservative agents been used. This was a year and a half after 

Fr. Francis death. 

 

02. Body Bled and Dried: Because of the callousness of some and the skepticism of others the 

incorrupt body of Xavier suffered not only many indignities but also many injuries and violence 

from thoughtless friends and admiring devotees as Fr. Rayanna rightly remarks in his book, “St. 

Francs Xavier and His Shrine”. The servant who was sent to exhume the body from the desolate 

island of Sancian cut off a piece of flesh of a finger’s length from above the left knee of the body 

and a jet of blood gushed out as from a living body.  

 

At Malacca the body was thrust down a grave too short for it and how the head was so pressed 

over the chest that it broke. And ever since the head retained that drooping position. There 

ensued a rupture of the skin on the nape of the neck, through which again a lot of blood flowed 

out.  

 

And when rough earth was rammed down the grave over the bare body, unprotected by a coffin, 

a deep cut resulted on the left cheek, the nose and the left sides of the chest were injured. From 

all these wounds blood oozed out. When the little outer toe was bitten off by a devotee craving 

for a relic in Goa, again blood flowed out. 

 

During the medical examination by Dr. Cosmas de Saraiva blood covered the fingers of two 

Jesuit Scholastics who were made to thrust their fingers into the wound on the left side near the 

heart.  

 

How much blood flowed out of all these wounds there is no way of telling. Apparently the blood 

was greatly drained out already by the time of the judicial examination by Dr. Ambrosio Ribeiro, 

Vicar General of Goa.  

 

03. Mutilations of the Body: His right arm and the internal parts of the body have been removed 

and distributed to various places where he worked and to Jesuit church of Gesu, Rome for 

veneration. This pious distribution has mutilated this centuries old miraculous body of St. 

Francis Xavier. Yet it does not disintegrate. And that is why it still remains as a miracle for us – 

as an authentic proof of the holiness of the man and the authenticity of his mission for the 

salvation of souls.   
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04.  Bom Jesus Basillica: The Home of St. Francis Xavier’s Miraculous Body: 

 

 

 

The House of Jesus or Bom Jesus a splendid edifice was built in 1589 as a Professed House of 

the Jesuits. It consisted of three vast edifices joined together at right angles with the middle one. 

It was in one of the rooms of the demolished story above the portico that the body of St. Francis 

Xavier remained from 1613 till his canonization in 1622. 

 

The right wing to the Professed House of Jesus is the world famous Minor Basilica of Bom 

Jesus. It was not originally erected to be the abode of the holy remains of the Saint, but as the 

church attached to the Professed House of the Jesuits. But it is famous now not only for its 

splendid architecture but also for the incorrupt body of St. Francis Xavier, the first Jesuit 

missionary to India.  

 

05.  Xavier’s Chapel: From 1623 the incorrupt body of St. Francis Xavier remained in the left-

side chapel. In 1660 with solemn festivities the body was transferred to a bigger chapel on the 

right wing of the Bom Jesus Church where it remains even to this day. The uncorrupted body is 

preserved in a Silver Casket prepared by Indian artists and placed on the majestic Florentine 

marble mausoleum, designed and built by Italian artists. 

  

After the Exposition in 1952, Jose da Costa Nunes, Patriarch of Goa decided that the sacred relic 

should no longer be touched directly by the pilgrims because of its deteriorating state.  



21 
 

 

“So an order was placed with Casa Brandissi (Rome) for a crystal or highly transparent glass urn 

to enclose the relics in. In 1955 the holy relic from the wooden coffin was transferred into the 

crystal urn. The urn is sealed with silver frame.  As this crystal urn is highly transparent, it serves 

well both the purposes of allowing the pilgrim to see the holy relic and at the same time 

preventing him to touch it directly with lips, hand or objects.”      

“The present state of the holy remnants is testified to by two medical men: Dr. Joao Manuel 

Pacheco de Figueiredo, ex-dean of the Goa Medical College, who was actually examining it for 

the third time, and Dr. Pedro de Ataide, physician. On 12 February 1975 they examined the relics 

through the glass case for half an hour. They found greater changes in the face. The left eye no 

longer protruded. The eyelids cannot be distinguished.  On the exterior they still form part of the 

face whose skin seems to be dry, withered and rugged with some spots of decay and the hair of 

the beard are sticking in the chin. In the angle of the lower jaw there is a spot of decay in the 

skin, revealing clearly the bone in a fresh condition. The outer right ear looks rather atrophied. In 

the hand and feet they could still see the flexuous veins and tendons. The right heel is detached 

but kept in position with the rest of the bones by a piece of wire. The colour of the skin of the 

parts that are bare is clayish.” 

 

“Strangely, it is the extreme, the exposed and bare parts of the body of the Saint – the head, the 

feet and the left hand that are preserved intact so long. Even now they retain their human 

resemblance though they look dried-up and parchment-like”.  The rest of the skeleton is covered 

in priestly vestments – the alb and the chasuble.  

 

06. Expositions of the Body of St. Francis Xavier: 

 

                   Expositions of the Body                                                                            Cathedral Old Goa                     

 

“From that cold morning of 17 February 1553, when as unsuspecting servant dug up the 

incorrupt body of Xavier, it has never ceased to be looked upon by the people as an object 

of wonder and veneration, in spite of the reluctance and opposition of the powers that be.” 

“The admiration and enthusiasm for the Saint’s relics have never died down. As the 

centuries roll by, more and more people went their way to his shrine even in the ruined city 

of Goa. In the beginning the body was exposed to the veneration of the faithful on the 

anniversary of his death, especially after his canonization in 1622 Later as the crowd of 
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visitors were on the increase and the body was more and more getting desiccated, the 

superiors of the Professed House of Bom Jesus were  not in favour of the exposition. “They, 

therefore, procured another order from Rome never to open the coffin ….” This 

arrangement worked satisfactorily from 1707 to 1744. 

On 12 December 1744, the Viceroy, Dom Pedro Miguel de Almeida, and the new Archbishop 

Dom Frei Loureco de Santa Maria, with the permission of the King of Portugal insisted to see the 

body of St. Francis Xavier. They were allowed to do so privately, though with reluctance. 

Similarly, the coffin was opened for veneration on 16th March 1751, again by the new Viceroy 

and the new Archbishop.  

 

In 1759 the Church of Bom Jesus together with the body of St. Francis Xavier came under the 

control of the Archdiocese of Goa. Then the body began to be exposed to the veneration of all 

for a number of days at irregular intervals on special occasions, which are known as the Solemn 

Expositions of the Body of St. Francis Xavier. So far there have been 16 such Expositions in 

1782, 1859, 1879, 1891, 1900, 1910, 1923, 1932, 1942, 1952, 1961, 1964, 1974, 1984, 1994 and 

2004. And now we are witnessing to the 17th such exposition of the miraculous body of St. 

Francis Xavier for the veneration of the Saint and for the glorification of God who works 

wonders through his prophets and saints.  

 

07. The Writings of the Saint: 

 

The holy relic is not all that remains of St. Francis Xavier. There are also 150 letters written by 

St. Francis Xavier from the field of his apostolic labours and travels.  His preaching set the 

people of the East on fire of God’s love for man and God’s concern for man’s salvation.  

 

But his letters set the people of the West on fire to spread the Gospel. The first mail he sent 

Europe contained 13 letters. His letters were highly regarded by John III, King of Portugal, who 

ordered them to be read in the Churches. This respect for Xavier’s letters, his zeal, and fervour 

for the eternal salvation of men became contagious in the courts of Madrid and Rome, in the 

universities of Coimbra (Portugal) Cologne (Germany, and Paris (France) and at the Council of 

Trent. Everybody wanted to possess and read them.  

 

As in the case of Fr. Jerome Nadal, who joined the Jesuit Order and promoted its spread in 

Europe, there are many others who were impelled to go to the missions as a result of the reading 

of Xavier’s letters..  For instance, St. Philip Neri ordered Xavier’s letters to be read through in 

his meetings, and with 20 of his disciples had almost abandoned Rome and sailed to India. When 

sending his missionaries to Madagascar in 1648 St. Vincent de Paul pointed out to St. Francis 

Xavier as their beacon-light and told them to take his life and letters with them. Thousands of 

people have been  reading and being inspired by the Letters of St. Francis Xavier every year 

since his death.  

 

Thus, through his miraculous bodily remains and through his letters St. Francis Xavier even 

today continues to preach to the East and West about the love of God for men and man’s need 

for eternal salvation.  
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08. The Canonization of St. Francis Xavier:  

 

“How pleasing  to Him were the life and  labours and death of Father Francis, God showed 

through the long-standing miraculous preservation of the body of His faithful servant from 

corruption, in spite of all that men did unwittingly to destroy it by immersing it in lime for nearly 

two and a half months and burying it in bare ground for over four months. Already out on his 

way to India, people called him Padre Santo, the holy priest. That epithet stuck to him all through 

his travels and labours in the East.  This reputation for sanctity became strongly confirmed in 

their minds by the extraordinary fact of his incorrupt body.  Henceforth they firmly held him as a 

saint.” writes Fr. Rayanna  

 

Yet the Church was not satisfied with this miracle alone of the incorrupt body to give Fr. Francis 

official recognition of his sanctity. To canonize a person is to enroll him or her in the official list 

of the Church’s Saints that is of persons who followed Jesus and the Gospel in a heroic manner 

and are sure models for Christians for Christian- living, and intercessors   before God in heaven. 

 

“When the King of Portugal, John II, came to know of the death and of the incorrupt body of the 

missionary he had sent out to the East, whom he had esteemed much and trusted greatly, he 

immediately issued an order to the Viceroy on 28 March 1556 to hold an inquiry into the life and 

labours, the edifying deeds and miraculous works of Xavier before and after death. He ordered 

that three copies of the inquiry should be forwarded to him, duly authenticated and signed”. 

 

The process opened in Goa on 18
th

 November 1556 and ended on 10 January 1557. In 1612 the 

acts of the process were translated into Latin and filed at the Sacred Congregation of Rites. Pope 

Paul V  on 25 October 1619, beatified  Francis Xavier.  Finally, the cause was brought to a 

successful end by Gregory XV in a semi-public consistory held on 10 February 1622. At last on 

12 March 1622, the Pope canonized Francis Xavier along with Ignatius Loyola, Isidore of 

Madrid, Phillip Neri and Teresa of Avila. As the holiness of his life, the sincerity of his faith 

and the number and greatness of his miracles were clearly proved. But Gregory XV died before 

he could issue the customary Decree of Canonization. His successor, Urban VIII, hastened to do 

on 6 August 1623, recounting in it the Saint’s heroic life. 

 

09. St. Francis Xavier is Honoured Today:  
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i. As the Chief Patron and Protector of the Indies:  On  24 February 1748 Pope Benedict XIV 

declared St. Francis Xavier the Chief Patron and Protector of the Indies from the Cape of Good 

Hope to the kingdoms of China and Japan, and to the adjacent provinces and islands.  

 

ii. As Defender the East:  Pedro II, King of Portugal ordered on 24 March 1699 that St. Francis 

Xavier be solemnly proclaimed in the city of Goa Defensor de Oriente, (Defender of the East.)  

 

iii.  As Patron of All Missions:  On 25 March 1904, Pius X had made St. Francis Xavier Patron 

of the pious works of the Propagation of the Faith; he had thus become the Patron of all 

missions. 

 

iv. As  Patron of Institutes: Quite a number of  religious  institutes of both men bear his name 

and put themselves under his protection as, for example, the Missionary Society of St. Francis 

Xavier, Pilar, Goa, commonly known as the Pilar Fathers. There are numerous countries, 

dioceses, cities, associations, schools and colleges which place themselves under his patronage 

or of persons who bear his name.  
 

Conclusion: The Personality of  St. Francis Xavier: 
 

Fr. Xavier died on Sancian Island at the age of 45, still young. Physically he was tall in stature, 

with a well framed face of reddish hue. He had black eyes. His hair and beard too were black. 

His countenance was so glad and inflamed with the love of God that it enkindled love in others 

who saw him. He was sociable and amiable. He was extremely charitable to aliens, jovial and 

confidential with the members of his household, especially with the lowly. He, however, was 

grave and even sometimes harsh towards those who had a high opinion about themselves. He 

took particular care of the sick and cordially received the visitors. 

 

Spiritually he was a man who preferred to save his own soul and that of all men which became 

his mission, following the foot-steps of his Master, Jesus. It was Jesus’ mission which he 

continued and carried out across the lands and seas of the Indies. And he died like Him young, 

alone and abandoned – “It is finished”. In all these he loved God and sought to do His will and 

trusted in Him, just as Jesus did.  But whatever he did, it was done for the Glory of God and to 

do His will. Then, what has God done for him?  God has accepted his self-gift as self-sacrifice 

and has authenticated him as a true witness and apostle of Jesus Christ through his miraculously 

incorrupt body – a body that has refused to decay even after a half a century after his death.  

 

Thus St. Francis Xavier died young like Jesus his Master, but he is still alive and active just like 

his Master, witnessing and proclaiming that Jesus, our Lord is the way to our salvation from sin 

and death.  

 

Jesus asks every one of us too the same question, which shuck young Francis Xavier, “What 

does it profit a man if he wins the whole world and loses his soul? To save our souls, like St. 

Francis Xavier,  let us turn to Jesus and be in  the company of Jesus, the Saviour who loved us 

and  suffered, died and  rose from the dead  so that we may have the fullness of  life, - The 

Eternal Life.  
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Prayer to St. Francis Xavier 
 
Lord Jesus, you gave St. Francis Xavier the grace to follow you for the glory of God and for the 

salvation  of  his own soul  and  of  all peoples. He tirelessly laboured in our country and in the 

neighbouring countries, so that all may attain fullness of life, the eternal life through your saving 

grace.  

 

Help us to look for lasting values in life and follow you so that we too may share in the glory 

which you have bestowed on St. Francis Xavier. We specially, pray for the people of our country 

that they may recognize you as the Lord and Saviour of all peoples.  

 

St. Francis Xavier, you are a true model follower of Jesus and a zealous missionary. Help us to 

follow your example to spend our lives for the glory of God and for the salvation of all peoples. 

As you have been a helper in the needs of other people, I beg you to help me in my/our needs for 

which I/we pray (present your petitions……..)  Glory be to God, the Father, the Son and the 

Holy Spirit. Amen. 

 

* * * * *   

 

 

JESUS IS THE WAY TO THE FATHER 

 
ñI am the Light of the world. He who follows Me will not be walking in the dark, 

but will have the Light of Lifeéò 
( John, 8/12) 

 

ñI am the Resurrection. If anyone believes in Me, even though he dies he will live, 

and whoever lives and believes in Me will never die. Do you believe this?ò 
( John, 11/25-26) 

 

ñI am the Way and the Truth and the Life. No-one comes to the Father except 

through me.ò 
( John, 11/25-26) 

  

“Christ Jesus came into the world to save sinners… He sacrificed Himself for 

us in order to set us free from all wickedness and to purify a people so that it 

could be His very own and would have no ambition except to do good.” 
(St. Paul in his first letter to 

Timothy 1/15, and to Titus 2/14) 

 

JESUS loves us, and by His death 
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He has freed us from our sins. 
( Book of Revelation, 

 

 

Saint Francis Xavier’s Photo Gallory 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Uncorrupted Body of                      
St. Francis Xavier 

Basilica of Bom Jesus  

 

Catholic Cathedral, Old Goa 
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Church inside the Bom Jesus Basilica 
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